
DARTFORD, GRAVESHAM, AND SWANLEY HEALTH 
AND WELLBEING BOARD

Councillor Roger Gough (Chair) 

Councillor Ann Allen 
Councillor Tony Searles
Councillor David Turner

Debbie Stock 
Dr Elizabeth Lunt 

Sheri Green 
Graham Harris 

Anne Tidmarsh
Andrew Scott - Clark
Stuart Clark

Melanie Norris 
Sarah Kilkie

Lesley Bowles 

Cecilia Yardley

Kent County Council

Dartford Borough Council
Sevenoaks District Council
Gravesham Borough Council

DGS - CCG
DGS - CCG

Dartford Borough Council
Dartford Borough Council

Kent County Council
Kent County Council
Kent County Council

Gravesham Borough Council
Gravesham Borough Council

Sevenoaks District Council

Healthwatch

A meeting of the above Board will be held on Wednesday 6 April 2016 at 3.00pm

In the Council Chamber, Gravesham Civic Centre, Windmill Street, Gravesend, Kent.  
DA12 1AU

If a member of the Board is unable to attend this meeting, apologies for absence can 
be submitted to the Clerk to the meeting on 01322 343251 or by eMail to 
neil.murphy@dartford.gov.uk

Questions relating to the arrangements for meetings of the Board should be directed 
in the first instance to the Clerk



A G E N D A 
1. Apologies For Absence 

2. Declarations of Interest 

3. Minutes (Pages 1 - 6)
The Minutes of the Meeting of the Dartford, Gravesham and Swanley 
Health and Wellbeing Board held on 24 February 2016 are attached 
for confirmation.

Issues arising from the Minutes not addressed elsewhere on the 
Agenda can be raised at this item.

4. Kent County Council Health and Wellbeing Board (Pages 7 - 10)
The Chairman may wish to report on any issues of relevance to this 
Board arising from that meeting. 

A copy of the Agenda is attached as an “aide memoire”.

5. Urgent Items 
The Chairman will report on any urgent item and determine its place 
on the Agenda.

6. Actions Outstanding from Previous Meetings (Pages 11 - 12)

7. Update on Public Commissioning Programmes 
Karen Sharp of Kent County Council Public Health will make a short 
presentation on this matter.  

8. Kent Alcohol Strategy: Update 

9. Dementia Friendly Community Audits: Results and Analysis (Pages 
13 - 22)
A report by Tracey Schneider, Project Officer, Dementia Friendly 
Communities, KCC.

10. Dementia Care Pathway and Performance Indicators (Pages 23 - 36)
Wendy Lakin is to report on this issue.

11. Update on the implications of new developments for the Health 
Sector and the new shape of service provision. 
On behalf of KCC, Stephanie Holt is leading on addressing the 
robustness of the HWB datasets which underpin the Growth and 



Infrastructure Framework (GIF) locally.  To this end Stephanie will be 
making a short presentation and inviting Member discussion at the 
conclusion. 

12. Obesity Update 
Val Miller will update the Board on the work of the Obesity Initiative

13. Member Availability for a Board meeting in August. 
Members were asked to review their diaries and be able to report if 
they were available to attend a meeting in August this year.

14. Information Exchange 

15. Board Work Programme (Pages 37 - 40)





1

DARTFORD GRAVESHAM AND SWANLEY HEALTH AND WELLBEING 
BOARD

MINUTES of the meeting of the Dartford Gravesham and Swanley Health and 
Wellbeing Board held on Wednesday 24 February 2016.

PRESENT: Councillor Roger Gough (Chairman)
Councillor Mrs Ann D Allen MBE
Councillor Tony Searles
Councillor David Turner
Sheri Green
Graham Harris
Melanie Norris
Sarah Kilkie
Lesley Bowles
Cecilia Yardley

ALSO PRESENT: Jenny Ellis, Job Centre Plus; Elizabeth Fairbairn, Violence 
Reduction Nurse; Val Miller, KCC Public Health; Dr Su Xavier; Dartford, 
Gravesham, and Swanley CCG

53. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 

Apologies for absence were received from Stuart Collins, Tristan Godfrey, Dr 
Elizabeth Lunt, and Debbie Stock.

Councillor Ann Allen apologised in advance that she would be late attending 
the meeting.

The Chairman being absent at the start of the meeting, Councillor Searles 
took the Chair until he arrived.

54. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

There were no declarations of interest received.

55. MINUTES 

The minutes of the meeting of the Health and Wellbeing Board held on 
Wednesday 9 December 2015 were confirmed as a correct record of the 
meeting.

56. KENT COUNTY COUNCIL HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD 

The Chairman, Councillor Gough having joined the meeting reviewed the 
meeting of the Kent Health and Wellbeing Board held on 27 January 2016 
and drew Members’ attention to the following matters which were discussed.

Winter Service Performance.  The Kent Board had noted that there had not 
been any major service issues over the winter period but was concerned that 
this was possibly due to the very mild weather conditions.



DARTFORD GRAVESHAM AND SWANLEY HEALTH AND WELLBEING 
BOARD

WEDNESDAY 24 FEBRUARY 2016

2

Issues relating to Darenth Valley Hospital were also noted but it was 
recognised that these were local issues only and not related to the winter.

Sustainability and Transformation Plans.  The Kent Board was updated on 
Guidance circulated by the Department of Health relating to sustainability and 
transformation plans for health provision within the County.  The Chairman 
commented that the intended “footprint” for the plan was likely to be Kent and 
Medway with three local focus areas of East, West and North Kent.

In response to a separate point raised by a Member, the Board agreed that it 
wished to receive a report on adolescent mental health, at a future meeting.

57. URGENT ITEMS 

It was noted that there were no urgent items for the Board to discuss. The 
Action Plan for the Obesity Framework was circulated for discussion under 
Agenda item 11. (Minute 63 below)

58. ACTIONS OUTSTANDING FROM PREVIOUS MEETINGS 

The Board received a report on work issues which were outstanding from 
previous meetings, and noted that a number of matters had been added to the 
Board’s work plan. 

Arising from this Councillor Turner enquired about the progress of dementia 
awareness training in schools and it was agreed that Stuart Collins would 
cover this during discussion on dementia scheduled for the next Board 
meeting.

59. REGENERATION IN SWANLEY 

Following on from her presentation to the Board at the meeting held on 9 
December 2015, Lesley Bowles further updated the Board on the progress of 
the planned regeneration at Swanley Town Centre.

Mrs Bowles reported that 

 A Consultant had been engaged to draw up a Masterplan for the 
regeneration and they would look at the data arising from the public 
consultation exercises to be undertaken

 Public consultation had been undertaken, with both a shop unit being 
used  to canvass passers - by and via an on line survey 

 Specialist transport consultants Urban Flow had been engaged to look 
at traffic and transport issues 



DARTFORD GRAVESHAM AND SWANLEY HEALTH AND WELLBEING 
BOARD

WEDNESDAY 24 FEBRUARY 2016

3

 Work was to be undertaken in local schools to ensure that a balanced 
demographic of consultation was obtained

 Meetings are to be arranged with all stakeholders to consider health 
provision in the Town Centre

It was reported that despite the fact that detailed analysis of the consultation 
had yet to be undertaken, a major area of concern identified was traffic 
congestion and that public transport issues had not been seen as a priority 
matter.

The Board expressed a need to have further comment on the Masterplan 
when drafted and noted that a further update would be provided at a meeting 
towards the end of the summer.

Arising from the discussion of this matter Councillor David Turner raised the 
matter of grant funding for sports clubs to provide taster events to encourage 
young people to take up sport, which he felt would be of benefit to both their 
physical and mental health and wellbeing. 

It was noted that some Councils employed Officers to undertake this role by 
direct provision and others by commissioning.  

The Board therefore agreed to further investigate the progression of this 
initiative.

60. EMPLOYABILITY AND HEALTH:  A PRESENTATION 

The Board received a presentation from Jenny Ellis the Thames Gateway 
Manager from Job Centre plus.

Ms Ellis provided details of the numbers of persons claiming Employment 
Support Allowance, and thus unfit to work, in both Dartford and Gravesham 
together with a breakdown of the figures into physical and mental causes, 
highlighting the economic cost of mental health issues to the Country of 
around £105.2 billion per annum.

She explained the levels of support available to such claimants through her 
Service in terms of counselling and advice, job identification and local events 
such as job fairs.

She also highlighted problems encountered by her service relating to medical 
details provided by General Practitioners on fitness to work notes provided to 
clients, and on liaison with health professionals regarding public health 
matters.

The Board agreed



DARTFORD GRAVESHAM AND SWANLEY HEALTH AND WELLBEING 
BOARD

WEDNESDAY 24 FEBRUARY 2016

4

1. To receive a further report on the liaison between the CCG and Job 
Centre Plus relating to education of GPs

2. To note that Dr Xavier was to work with Job Centre Plus on a strategic 
approach to employability and health particularly around Public Health 
issues.

61. VIOLENCE REDUCTION INITIATIVE 

The Board were informed of the details of an initiative currently undertaken by 
Staff Nurse Elizabeth Fairbairn of the William Harvey Hospital Ashford, to 
establish a violent crime reporting programme across hospitals in Kent, Surry 
and Sussex.

The initiative consisted of the collection of data by local hospitals, the collation 
and the anonymization of the data and the transmission of the data to local 
Crime and Safety Partnerships who are able to use the data as intelligence in 
identifying violence hotspots and trends.

It was reported that national experience had shown that once implemented 
the initiative can

• Informed the targeting of police resources

• Inform Licensing applications and appeals

• Target problem premises

• Aid the Violence diffusion effect (Violence diffusion – research shows 
that when there is a decrease in violence in the public areas less 
violence filters into home and thus Domestic Abuse rates decrease)

Ms Fairburn explained that while NHS had now made the reporting of violence 
mandatory she had not been able to complete the necessary introduction to 
all the hospitals in her designated area, and the funding for the initiative was 
due to expire at the end of March 2016, and unfortunately new funding had 
not been identified.

The Board noted the great value of the initiative and expressed its concern 
that funding was an issue and it was suggested that local Crime and Safety 
Partnerships should be able to contribute to the funding of this project.

The Board therefore agreed that the local Crime and Safety Partnerships be 
approached to obtain the necessary funding for this initiative to continue.

62. LOCAL GOVERNMENT ASSOCIATION SUPPORT PROGRAMME FOR 
HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARDS 



DARTFORD GRAVESHAM AND SWANLEY HEALTH AND WELLBEING 
BOARD

WEDNESDAY 24 FEBRUARY 2016

5

The Board was informed that an offer had been received from the Local 
Government Association to provide development support for our Board and 
thus enhance our relationship with the Kent HWB and provide better 
outcomes for Kent residents.

Arising from discussions with the LGA and the Chairman of our Board it was 
proposed that the LGA facilitated a workshop event for the DGS Board, which 
would provide an opportunity to learn from other Boards, and to consider

 how well the Dartford, Gravesham and Swanley Board is currently 
working,

 how it links with the Kent Board, 
 whether membership needs to be changed/expanded in any way; and 
 how to further develop the Board

.  
It was also noted that the Board would need to identify a topic for the 
workshop event to focus on and would need to decide on the details of how 
the workshop was to be staged.

The Board agreed

i. To take up the offer of support from the LGA

ii. That the topic of Obesity be the subject of the Workshop event

iii. That the workshop should be a freestanding event and not use a 
currently identified Board meeting date

iv. Further issues be resolved between the Chairman and Officers

63. LOCAL OBESITY FRAMEWORK: UPDATE 

Dr Xavier and Val Miller gave a brief update on the progress of the Local 
Obesity Framework and circulated to the Board a partially completed Action 
Plan Template which detailed progress and targets for the four themes 
identified in the Framework.

Board Members were invited to report on any inaccuracies identified in the 
Template and to pass any suggestions on publicity and promotion of the 
initiatives to Dr Xavier and Val Miller.

It was also suggested that the identification of an “Obesity Champion” may aid 
in publicising and progressing the work of the Action Plan and Framework.

The Board agreed that, as obesity had been identified as the topic for the LGA 
workshop event identified at item 62 in these minutes, it was appropriate that 
further consideration on the details of the Framework should be undertaken at 
that event.



DARTFORD GRAVESHAM AND SWANLEY HEALTH AND WELLBEING 
BOARD

WEDNESDAY 24 FEBRUARY 2016

6

64. UPDATE ON THE IMPLICATIONS OF NEW DEVELOPMENTS FOR THE 
HEALTH SECTOR AND THE NEW SHAPE OF SERVICE PROVISION 

It was reported that a decision on the Healthy New Towns bid submission was 
to be announced shortly and that the Board would be advised accordingly.

65. MEETING DATES FOR 2016 / 2017 

The Board received and approved the schedule of meetings presented for 
2016 / 2017 subject to further discussions on the viability of holding a meeting 
in August 2016.

It therefore was agreed that Board Members assess their availability to attend 
the meeting scheduled to take place on 10 August and be prepared to make a 
final decision on this matter at the next Board meeting.

66. INFORMATION EXCHANGE 

The Board was informed that the Community Review of “Mind the Gap” by 
Chris Bentley had been circulated by Val Miller.

It was also suggested that the Board may wish to contribute to the 
consultation exercise currently under way on the proposed new River Thames 
crossing, although it was noted that there may be differing views within the 
Board on the proposals.

67. BOARD WORK PROGRAMME 

The Board received a report on its work plan and noted the following additions 
to the plan for forthcoming meetings, which had arisen from this meeting. 

 Progress against DGS HWB priorities: Kent Teenaged Pregnancy 
strategy – move to “To be Scheduled” section

 Dementia Issues: move to 6 April Meeting

 JSNA Issues: chair to discuss this item with Officers. 

(a) FIELD
(b) FIELD_TITLE 



AGENDA

HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD

Wednesday, 16th March, 2016, at 6.30 pm Ask for: Ann Hunter

Darent Room, Sessions House, County Hall, 
Maidstone

Telephone 03000 416287

Refreshments will be available 15 minutes before the start of the meeting 

Membership 

Mr R W Gough (Chairman), Dr F Armstrong, Mr I Ayres, Dr B Bowes (Vice-Chairman), 
Ms H Carpenter, Mr P B Carter, CBE, Dr D Cocker, Ms F Cox, Ms P Davies, 
Mr G K Gibbens, Mr S Inett, Mr A Ireland, Dr M Jones, Dr N Kumta, Dr E Lunt, Dr T Martin, 
Mr P J Oakford, Mr S Perks, Cllr K Pugh, Mr A Scott-Clark, Dr R Stewart Cllr P Watkins and 
Cllr L Weatherly

Webcasting Notice

Please note:  this meeting may be filmed for the live or subsequent broadcast via the 
Council’s internet site or by any member of the public or press present.   The Chairman will 
confirm if all or part of the meeting is to be filmed by the Council.

By entering into this room you are consenting to being filmed.  If you do not wish to have 
your image captured please let the Clerk know immediately

UNRESTRICTED ITEMS
(During these items the meeting is likely to be open to the public)

1 Chairman's Welcome 
 

2 Apologies and Substitutes 

To receive apologies for absence and notification of any 
substitutes

3 Declarations of Interest by Members in items on the agenda for this meeting 



To receive any declarations of Interest by Members in items on 
the agenda for the meeting

4 Minutes of the Meeting held on 27 January 2016 (Pages 5 - 12)

To receive and agree the minutes of the last meeting

5 A - Commissioning, Operational and Transformation Plans 

To receive presentations on a health economy basis outlining 
the extent to which plans for 2016/17 and beyond reflect the 
Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy, their contribution to the 
wider transformation agenda and the extent to which they assist 
integration and the “nine must-do’s”

B - Better Care Fund 2016/17 (Pages 13 - 16)

To receive an update on the Better Care Fund 2016/17 in 
relation to the policy and planning requirements, financial 
allocations, assurance and approval process

 

6 Joint Strategic Needs Assessment (Pages 17 - 22)

To receive a report presenting the outcomes from the Kent 
JSNA workshop in September 2015

7 Kent Health and Wellbeing Board Work Programme (Pages 23 - 26)

To agree a Forward Work Programme

8 Minutes of the Local Health and Wellbeing Boards (Pages 27 - 62)

To note the minutes of local health and wellbeing boards as 
follows:

Ashford – 20 January 2016
Canterbury and Coastal – 19 January 2016
Dartford, Gravesham and Swanley – 24 February 2016
South Kent Coast – 24 November 2015 
Thanet – 21 January 2016
West Kent – 16 February 2016

9 Date of Next Meeting - 25 May 2016 
 



EXEMPT ITEMS
(At the time of preparing the agenda there were no exempt items.  During any such items 

which may arise the meeting is likely NOT to be open to the public)

Peter Sass
Head of Democratic Services 
(01622) 694002

Tuesday, 8 March 2016





DARTFORD, GRAVESHAM AND SWANLEY HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD

6 April 2016
 

______________________________________________________________________________

1

From: Executive Group (Member Services) 

Subject: Action Points Arising From Previous Meeting(s) of the DGS HWB

Classification: Unrestricted

Summary:
The report details progress against action points arising from the previous meeting(s).

Recommendations

The Health and Wellbeing Board is asked to:

Note the action points arising from previous meeting(s) and subsequent action, and 
consider whether any item should be added to the forward work plan to enable a more 
detailed discussion at a future meeting.

1. Background and discussion

Meeting 
first raised

Minute/Item Action taken/to be taken Lead

17/6/2015 Min 82 – Progress 
Against DGSHWB 
Priorities

Receive Kent Teenage 
Pregnancy Strategy when 
available 

Kent PH – Added to 
Work Plan (To be 
scheduled) -Done

24/2/2016 Min 56 – Kent HWB Board to receive report on 
adolescent mental health

CCG (Dr Lunt) – 
Added to Work Plan 
(To be scheduled) - 
Done

Min 59 – 
Regeneration in 
Swanley

Board to receive further report 
in August

SDC (Lesley 
Bowles) – Added to 
Work Plan - Done

Board to investigate availability 
of grant funding for sports 
clubs etc to encourage 
participation by young people 

District Councils

Min 60 – 
Employability & 
Health

Board to receive further report 
on liaison between CCG and 
JCP on GP education on this 
issue

JCP - Added to 
Work Plan (To be 
scheduled) - Done

Min 61 – Violence 
Reduction Initiative

Community Safety 
Partnerships to be approached 
re future funding 

District Councils



DARTFORD, GRAVESHAM AND SWANLEY HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD

6 April 2016
 

______________________________________________________________________________

2

1 Conclusion and Recommendations
The Board is asked to:

Note the action points arising from previous meeting(s) and subsequent action, and 
consider whether any additional item should be added to the forward work plan to 
enable a more detailed discussion at a future meeting, or any other action taken.

3 Contact details

Neil Murphy, Committee Coordinator, Dartford Borough Council, 
email: neil.murphy @dartford.gov.uk

4. Background Papers - None



DARTFORD, GRAVESHAM AND SWANLEY HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD

6 April 2016
 

______________________________________________________________________________

1

From: Executive Group (Member Services) 

Subject: North Kent Dementia Event: Overview

Classification: Unrestricted

Summary:
The report sets out details of the Dementia Friendly Communities Programme and of a 
dementia awareness event held at Longfield Academy on 16 February 2016. 

Recommendations

The Health and Wellbeing Board is asked to consider the information provided in 
Appendices A and B to this report

1. Background and discussion
Members are asked to consider the information provided in the Appendices and 
comment as necessary

2. Conclusion and Recommendations
The Board is asked to note the information provided in the appendices to this 
report:

3 Contact details

Neil Murphy, Committee Coordinator, Dartford Borough Council, 
email: neil.murphy @dartford.gov.uk

4. Background Papers - None





Appendix A

Dementia Friendly Communities

DGS Area

The DFC programme has been working across Kent since May 2013, this is a highlight report on the 
progress of the areas within the DGS HWBB area. 

In 2013 we did an insight gathering exercise which gave us information from 77 people from 
organisations within the DGS area and 92 residents 

This initial insight looked at the understanding of dementia and the knowledge of local services 
available for people with dementia. 

The key findings showed that many residents (approx.1/3 of those replied) still believed that 
Dementia was a natural part of aging. The symptom being focused greatly on memory issues with 
little understanding of any other effects. 41 residents knew of no services in the area which would 
be of help to people with dementia. Awareness and Information were the actions that people felt 
necessary to make the area more dementia friendly.

In terms of local organisations over half of those replied stated that they felt that their own and their 
organisations knowledge of dementia was average or below. There was also a lack of knowledge of 
other services within the district. 

Due to the findings of the initial insight we started to address these main aspects of knowledge, 
information, awareness and joint working. 

Since 2013: 

A DGS dementia Action Alliance has been formed to look at the wider area, and 3 smaller forums 
established looking more locally at the following areas Swanley and the Northern parishes, Dartford 
and Gravesham. 

DGS DAA: There have been two large networking and information events, one in 2014 in Gravesham 
at the Rugby Club and the second at the Longfield academy in Feb 2016.  These events were open to 
all those with an interest in dementia, at both events people could access information, listen to talks 
and attend awareness sessions. 

The DGS DAA are also using information gained from these events to look at local areas priorities 
which at this time are 

Loneliness and isolation, engagement with BME community, ‘Live for today Plan for tomorrow’ and 
the 3 Ds Dementia Delirium and Depression. 

Area specific multi agency leaflets have been produced 



Small working groups are formed to identify how these important aspects can be shared locally to 
increase people’s awareness and knowledge. 

Swanley and Northern Parishes: There have been two smaller open information events in Swanley, 
one at the Orchards academy and one in the town council rooms. Awareness raising and 
environment have been a large focus in this area and a 3rd event will be held this May during 
dementia awareness week in Hextable. 

Dartford: An awareness event was held at Temple hill last year and events planned for dementia 
awareness week, Local council front line staff have been targeted for awareness sessions. Adaptions 
made to the shop safe scheme to be open to those with dementia making the scheme a shop safe 
stay safe scheme.

Gravesham: Gravesham adopted the Dartford Shop safe stay safe scheme and now work in 
Gravesham is looking at encouraging a dementia friendly shopping centre and high street. Local 
schools have also been involved in the dementia work.

Outcomes

Since 2013 we now have approx. 1950 dementia friends registered in the DGS area (as of jan 2016) 

Recent engagement has shown an increase in local people’s knowledge of not only understanding of 
dementia but also local services available.

Local forums and the wider DGS DAA have allowed for better sharing of information and encourages 
collaborative working. 

Phone calls to the Dementia Helpline from the DGS area have reduced considerably since 2013 with 
an average 40% reduction in calls per month with only 8 calls from the DGS area in Feb 2016.

Going forward 

Each of the local forums are planning local events for Dementia Awareness week May 15-21 2016 

Work is being done by the DGS DAA to promote awareness of their key priorities

Encouraging awareness raising with local organisations and businesses 

Working to encourage more inclusive behaviour with local clubs, groups and hobbies etc. 



Appendix B

DGS Networking, presentation and workshop event

16th Feb 2016 at the Longfield academy, Dartford

Evaluation 

Main Event Costs 

Lunch  £470 
Sundries/Refreshments  £53.26 

Total event cost £523.26  (£300 funded from Cllr Maddison/223.26 DFC funds) 

Additional cost for the Virtual Dementia Tour  £800- funded by KCC commissioning/ DFC fund

Reason for the Event 

Over  the past two years Dementia friendly communities and dementia action alliances have been 
being built across Kent. 
In the DGS area there is a DGS Dementia action alliance which acts as an umberella for the three 
smaller district level dementia friendly communities of Dartford, Gravesham and Swanley.

The local Dementia friendly communities look at the local needs and issues and how best to 
respond, The DGS DAA looks at a slightly more strategic level looking at how change can be 
influenced across the wider area. 

Over the last few years, all the work done in the DGS area through insight gathering and case studies 
It has pointed clearly to the fact that once people are in services then the individual services are 
great, but the issues are more around the initial diagnosis and initially finding their way into the 
available services. 

There has also been seen to be some misunderstandings between agencies about how to refer and 
how to best work together. With all the constant changes in staffing and funding recently knowledge 
of how best to address these issues is being lost to the detriment of local residents. 

All the work in the Dementia Action Alliances and Dementia Friendly Communities have pointed to 
the fact that people with a diagnosis, or family carers really wish to continue their lives as they have 
been for as long as is practicable. This means far more than just health and social care, this means 
that a community response to dementia is needed. 

Local people, residents, family, shops, hobby groups and services, basically everyone that anyone 
would come across in their daily lives could come in contact with someone living with the effects of 
dementia. With a little bit of time, patience and understanding we can allow people affected by 
dementia remain a valuable part of their community for as long as possible. 



The DGS DAA intended to use this event, hosted by the Longfield academy in Dartford, to both 
address the issues above and to also encourage people to have an input into how we can best work 
towards this years chosen priorities through presentations and workshops. 

 Working collaboratively 
 Behaviour which could be challenging 
 Loneliness and Isolation 
 3D’s Dementia Delirium and Depression 
 BME community engagement 
 Plan for tomorrow and Live for today 

The day was open to all and no charges are made for stalls or attendees

Aspects of the day 

There were 3 aspects to the main event these consisted of; a marketplace with various organisations 
having information stalls; Presentations relevant to the DGS priorities; Workshops to better define 
how the DGS DAA should take the chosen priorities forward. 

An additional aspect of involving the Virtual dementia tour was added after KCC commissioning / 
Dementia Friendly community (DFC) project funds agreed to fund the experience for 36 persons 
from a multitude of backgrounds 

Attendees

During the day we asked attendees to sign in, we had 116 people sign in of which 13 classified 
themselves as carers and 5 as having a dementia diagnosis.

During the day 312 hot drinks were provided as well as a light lunch curtesy of Cllr Tom Maddison 
and the DFC fund. 

Exhibitors 

Alzheimer’s and Dementia Support Services
Argo Life and Legacy

Avanti
Bluebird Care
Carers First
Chosen with Care

CAB 
Community Wardens
Crossroads
Darent Valley Hospital
Dementia Adventure



Ellenor
Home improvement agency
Kent and Medway Partnership Trust
Kent Association for Blind
Kent Fire and Rescue
Kent Library service
Kent Search and Rescue
North Kent Volunteer centre
Thackray Williams
The Good Care Group
Training 2 care (virtual dementia tour)
Whitehead Monkton

Feedback

We asked people to fill in ‘feedback ‘form’s for the day as a whole and we received the following 
feedback to date from 36 people 

Did today meet your expectations?   

 yes x 34, partially x 1, no x 1

Did you learn something today? 

yes x 36 

What was the most useful part of the day?

There was a general split in what people found the most useful part of the day, some 
preferred the talks and workshops while others preferred the networking opportunities.

What was the least useful part of the day? 

Only two people responded in this area, one to say the lack of structure of the day, the other 
felt that some of the speakers were the least useful aspect.

Suggestions for future events 

More young people involved, more residents, more people with dementia, young onset 
dementia, possibly squeeze in another session with less gaps, more information for local 
care home providers regarding dementia, presentations from groups and what they do, 
more of these types of events more often in DGS, more people with dementia experiences, 
more carers supportive info- i.e. carers with dementia caring for someone with dementia, 
invite members of the public, young people and learning disabilities



Other feedback 

Thank you and your team for organising the event yesterday. I travelled up from Faversham to 
join you. It's great to see what others are doing in another area. - Speech & Language Therapist 

Just want to thank you for putting on such a good event.  The speakers and workshop sessions were 
great.

I found the most useful part of the day were the husband and wife that described their experience of 
the husbands experience of dementia.  All the talks were very informative. The stalls were good.  I 
can’t actually say what was least useful part of the day.

I must say how much Lyn and myself enjoyed yesterday. We both got so much from it all. I 
congratulate you on a well planned programme everything appeared to run smoothly.

Thank you Tracey for putting on this event which I found very useful and David’s story was truly 
inspirational and emotive.

Although I was only able to attend for the last two hours but found the presentations interesting and 
in laymen’s terms….which was refreshing!

Thank you for arranging the day.  We had numerous very interesting conversations and 
exchanges of info.

Really enjoyed the experience and really the whole day if I’m honest.

I wanted to write to thank you for organising such a great event.  I attended as a 
representative of an NHS organisation but I am also a carer for my Nan who has dementia.

Outcomes from the event (immediate) 

The Longfield Academy wish to become more involved locally after the event
A number of attendees wish to join the local Dementia Friendly communities 
Information was gained to assist the DGS DAA in their priorities 
All those who completed the feedback forms confirmed that they had learnt 
something during the event 
A general wider understanding 
9 new dementia friends 
34 people experienced the Virtual dementia tour
Some family members of attending people living with dementia have been offered 
FREE places on upcoming Virtual dementia tours. 



Virtual Dementia Tour (VDT)

The VDT conducted its own evaluation from those who were able to experience this aspect of the 
day 

34 People experienced this during the day 

VDT cost £800 

Overall did the tour meet your expected learning outcomes?

Definitely x 29, Achieved x 4, half achieved x 1, Did Not x 0

Did the tour reinforce or increase your level of knowledge?

Definitely x 31, Achieved x 2, half achieved x 1, Did Not x 0 

Overall how would you rate the tour?

Excellent x 31, Good x 2, Fair x 1, Poor x 0 

Selection of the Feedback received…

Outstanding – KMPT Psychologist 

Excellent- care homes definitely benefit – NHS will save money on people with dementia being 
admitted to mental health wards- preventative work – KMPT assistant psychologist 

Powerful – very worthwhile both tour and debrief – dementia nurse specialist 

Would like to see as mandatory training for all carers and NHS staff  - Ellinor hospice 

Enlightening, thought provoking- volunteer 

Highly recommend if you have the opportunity to take this tour – housing officer 

This tour is an excellent insight into how people with dementia see/hear the world around them and 
how frightening everyday situations can be – KCC OPPD 

I think all people working with individuals who have dementia, especially in care home settings 
should experience the VDT and debrief- Excellent thought provoking – Home care agency 

Amazing – Lawyer

I got very confused and felt vulnerable in this tour – KCC OPPD

Absolutely amazing experience so much more powerful to live it, if even for a few moments. Would 
love some of our staff to experience this – Carers First 





DARTFORD, GRAVESHAM AND SWANLEY HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD

6 April 2016
 

______________________________________________________________________________

1

From: Executive Group (Member Services) 

Subject: North Kent Dementia Care

Classification: Unrestricted

Summary:
This items presents a report which sets out details of the progress made in developing 
dementia care in Dartford Gravesham and Swanley.

Recommendations

The Health and Wellbeing Board is asked to note the information contained in the 
attached appendix.

1. Background and discussion
Members are asked to consider the information provided in the attached Appendix.

2 Contact details

Neil Murphy, Committee Coordinator, Dartford Borough Council, 
email: neil.murphy @dartford.gov.uk

3. Background Papers - None





                

- 1 -

To: Dartford Health and Wellbeing Board,  

Subject: Update on progress with Dementia in Dartford, Gravesham 
and Swanley 

Classification: Unrestricted
By: Wendy Lakin

Commissioning Project Manager

Recommendations

The Board is asked to note the progress made in developing dementia care in 
Dartford, Gravesham & Swanley.

Executive Summary

This report aims to provide an overview of the wide range of initiatives which 
are currently underway across Dartford, Gravesham and Swanley to help 
improve access to a timely diagnosis of dementia and to ensure that people 
affected by dementia, both patients and carers are supported to live well with 
dementia and avoid unnecessary crisis events. 

The Prime Ministers Challenge on Dementia 2020 cited actions to be taken 
across four themes.  This report highlights the implementation and progress on 
a number of projects relating to risk reduction, health and care, awareness and 
social action that address the recommendations.

The report highlights efforts across the health and social care sector to increase 
the range of support available, including early identification, a more timely 
diagnosis, and an increased level of support in the community for people with 
dementia and their families. 

The paper also outlines an initiative that is in progress to develop a 
dementia/cognitive impairment community hub. This new development will 
provide an excellent opportunity for partnership working between health and the 
voluntary sector to deliver an integrated, local community service to make sure 
the right services are in place for our local population.

The approach of the service will be person centred and underpinned by the 
philosophy of wellbeing and social inclusion, with a no wrong door approach, 
provision accessed via a single access point that triages and determines what 



                

- 2 -

interventions are required to meet the need of the individual. The new approach 
will put a greater focus on outcomes and engage people in innovative ways to 
achieve these outcomes.

1. Key Drivers for change

This report will give an update on the progress that has been made with 
improving dementia care in Dartford, Gravesham and Swanley since the Prime 
Minister’s Challenge 2020 published in February 2015.

The Prime Minister’s Challenge on Dementia 2020 set out more than 50 
specific commitments that aim to make England the world-leader in dementia 
care, research and awareness by 2020. The implementation plan published on 
6th March 2016 sets out how these commitments will be met.

It sets out priority actions across 4 themes:

 Risk reduction
 Health and care
 Awareness and social action
 Research

Stakeholders involved in different aspects of dementia care and support came 
together to develop a joint declaration on post diagnostic dementia care and 
support, setting out what good quality post-diagnostic dementia care should 
look like. The declaration, which represents for the first time a shared 
commitment to joint action across government, health, social care, the third 
sector and all other relevant partners, outlines how integrated and effective 
services should meet the needs of people with dementia, their families and 
carers.

This declaration sets out:

 Shared commitment to joint action across government, health, social
           care, the third sector and all other relevant partners
 An ambition to deliver better quality post-diagnostic care
 The need to deliver integrated and effective services that meet the needs
           of people with dementia and their families and carers

The key aims for transforming dementia care and support by 2020 focus on the 
following areas:

Improved public awareness and understanding of the factors, which increase 
the risk of developing dementia and how people can reduce their risk by living 
more healthily. 



                

- 3 -

Risk reduction will play a central role in public health policies and campaigns 
and non-communicable disease actions plans around the world. 

In every part of the country people with dementia having equal access to 
diagnosis as for other conditions, with an expectation that the national average 
for an initial assessment should be 6 weeks following a referral from a GP 
(where clinically appropriate), and that no one should be waiting several months 
for an initial assessment of dementia.

All Clinical Commissioning Groups and Local Health and Wellbeing Boards 
having access to improved data regarding the prevalence of dementia at local 
and national level and using this data to inform the commissioning and 
provision of services so that more people with dementia receive a timely 
diagnosis and appropriate post-diagnosis support.

An increase in the numbers of people of black, Asian and minority ethnic origin 
and other seldom heard groups who receive a diagnosis of dementia, enabled 
through greater use by health professionals of diagnostic tools that are 
linguistically or culturally appropriate.

GPs playing a leading role in ensuring coordination and continuity of care for 
with dementia, as part of the existing commitment that from 1 April 2015 
everyone will have access to a named GP with overall responsibility and 
oversight for their care. 

Every person diagnosed with dementia having meaningful care following their 
diagnosis, which supports them and those around them, this care may include 
for example:

1. Receiving information on what post-diagnosis services are available 
locally and how these can be accessed, through for example an annual 
‘information prescription’. 

2. Access to relevant advice and support to help and advice on what 
happens after a diagnosis and the support available through the journey.

3. Carers of people with dementia being made aware of and offered the 
opportunity for respite, education, training, emotional and psychological 
support so that they feel able to cope with their caring responsibilities 
and to have a life alongside caring. 

More employers having carer friendly policies and practice enabling more
carers to continue working and caring.

Increased numbers of people with dementia being able to live longer in their   
own homes when it is in their interests to do so.



                

- 4 -

All hospitals and care homes meeting agreed criteria to becoming a dementia-
friendly health and care setting. 

Fewer people with dementia being inappropriately admitted to hospital as an 
emergency through better provision of support in community settings.

To continue the reduction of inappropriate prescribing of antipsychotic 
medication for people with dementia.

All relevant health and care staff who care for people with dementia being 
educated about why challenging behaviours can occur and how to most 
effectively manage these. 

All people with a diagnosis of dementia being given the opportunity for 
advanced care planning early in the course of their illness, including plans for 
end of life.

All people with dementia and their carers receiving co-ordinated, 
compassionate and person-centred care towards and at the end of life including 
access to high quality palliative care from health and social care staff trained in 
dementia and end of life, as well as bereavement support for carers.

All NHS staff receives training on dementia. 

2. Improved public awareness – dementia friendly communities 

A number of initiatives are underway to increase awareness in the community 
about dementia and to reduce the stigma associated with dementia. It is known 
that dementia is still one of the most feared diagnoses and consequently 
people do not seek help early enough. As awareness increases of the support 
available to it is hoped that people will be encouraged to seek help and thus 
prevent a crisis event from occurring. 

The Dartford Dementia Friendly Community Forum was initiated in January 
2014 as part of the Kent initiative 'Working towards becoming a Dementia 
Friendly Community'

The DGS Dementia Action Alliance is a member of the Kent Dementia Action 
Alliance and as such is part of the Kent initiative 'Working towards becoming a 
Dementia Friendly Community'.  Members are agencies and residents of the 
area including statutory, voluntary and third sector agencies with agreement of 
all members on Terms of Reference including committing to the National 
Dementia Declaration, and sharing local information and best practice

Members had already evidenced their determination to help people to live well 
with Dementia through their membership of both local Dementia forums and the 
Kent Dementia action alliance. Membership includes: Dartford Borough 



                

- 5 -

Council, Alzheimer’s and Dementia Support Services, Carers First, Kent Fire 
and Rescue service, Kent County Council: Dementia friendly communities 
team, Libraries, Community wardens and is open to all.

The National Dementia Declaration lists several outcomes that the Dartford 
Action Alliance is seeking to achieve for people with dementia and their carers. 
The purpose of the Dartford Dementia Forum is:

 To support and Empower people living with dementia 
 To promote independence and encourage inclusion
  To encourage community support giving dementia a place in the 

community
 To promote awareness of dementia in order to reduce the stigma of 

dementia encouraging respect and dignity 

All members of the forum are encouraging their own and partners’ front line 
staff to become dementia friends. Local council front line staff, plus other forum 
members’ front line staff have had Dementia friends awareness sessions 
delivered with more being arranged throughout 2016.

Shop safe stay safe - Further evolve the Dartford scheme to also use local care 
homes, sheltered housing, libraries etc. as ‘Safe places’ encourage more use of 
the scheme and deliver Dementia friends sessions to staff in ‘safe places’ as 
well as other residents in homes and sheltered schemes.

Transport has been recognised as a big issue across Kent with a number of 
people living with dementia finding the public transport to be ‘lacking’ in both 
provision and often in staff attitude. The group agreed that maybe a drive in 
Dartford for transport providers to become dementia friendly could be a very 
worthwhile project that could go on to impact all Kent, starting with buses, taxis 
etc. Go-Coach staff has undertaken dementia friends sessions and further work 
is being done around other companies and also taxi firms

During July 2015 Dartford hosted a ‘Dartford festival’ with a local company 
called ‘Brightshadow’ to raise awareness with the general public. Brightshadow 
produces creative projects and performances to raise awareness of dementia, 
to advocate for those whom it affects and to enable people with dementia to 
actively enjoy their homes towns and communities. 

The longer term benefits of promoting dementia friendly communities for people 
living with dementia and their carers will include: 

 An increased awareness from the community and services around them 
about dementia and in turn a reduction of stigma 

 Better support for people within their communities and less isolation and 
loneliness 



                

- 6 -

 An improved experience when ‘out and about’ as a result of the work 
carried out with local businesses and services

3. Risk reduction

Dementia screening is now included as part of the NHS Health Check.  GPs 
participate in a direct enhanced service to identify and screen people who are 
at risk of dementia.

GPs offer an opportunistic screening for dementia to people in the following “at 
risk” groups:

 patients aged 60 and over with cardiovascular disease (CVD), stroke, 
peripheral vascular disease or diabetes;

 patients aged 60 and over with cardiovascular disease (CVD), stroke, 
peripheral vascular disease or diabetes; 

 patients aged 40 and over with Down’s syndrome; 

 other patients aged 50 and over with learning disabilities; 

 patients with long-term neurological conditions which have a known 
neurodegenerative element, for example, Parkinson’s disease.

This improved detection and recording of patients who have dementia is an 
essential baseline on which to build the appropriate care and services these 
patients need. This leads to better care for patients as part of their routine care.

4. Diagnosis and waiting times

The government set the first ever national ambition on dementia diagnosis that 
two-thirds of the estimated number of people with dementia should receive a 
diagnosis and appropriate post-diagnosis support by March 2016 so that they 
can access the right care at the right time. 

In August 2014 the diagnosis rate in Dartford, Gravesham and Swanley was 
46.04% increasing to 64% at February 2016 with 1839 people now having a 
confirmed diagnosis. This has been achieved by improving dementia detection 
amongst registered patients and improving recording of dementia to ensure that 
all patients diagnosed with dementia have their primary care patient record 
updated.

Referrals for the first assessment in memory assessment services provided by 
Kent and Medway Partnership Trust are triaged and people receive their first 
assessment within four weeks.  The majority of people are assessed within their 



                

- 7 -

home environment.  Diagnosis is mainly achieved within eighteen weeks from 
the initial referral with a small number of complex dementias taking a little 
longer due to the number of interventions e.g. CT scan, Clinical Psychology 
assessment and assessment for activities of daily living.

5. Access to data to inform commissioning

On 12 January 2016 Public Health England published a new Dementia Profile 
on the fingertips platform providing access to local authority and CCG level data 
across the whole dementia care pathway. The profile shares key information, 
such as how many people have dementia broken down by area and age; the 
number of people who have received an NHS health check; the number of 
people who have depression; emergency hospital admission numbers; and 
where people with dementia die.

The dementia data catalogue was published at the same time, which lists 
intelligence sources relevant to dementia at CCG and local authority level.  

6. GPs to lead on coordination of care
All people over 75 now have a named GP and this has been expanded to cover 
all ages. The named GP is largely a role of oversight and working with relevant 
associated health and social care professionals to deliver a multi-disciplinary 
care package that meets the needs of the patient.
GP practices now collaborate in networks focused on populations between 
9,000 and 15,000 within given geographies. The networks include community 
nursing, social care and mental health working with GPs as Integrated Primary 
Care Teams. Their core focus is to provide joined-up support for those 
individuals with long-term conditions and complex health and social care needs 
by carrying out proactive case finding and patient review for vulnerable people 
including people with cognitive impairment and dementia.  This includes 
developing collaboratively with a patient and their carer (if applicable) a 
written/electronic personalised care plan, jointly owned by the patient, carer (if 
applicable) and named accountable GP and/or care co-ordinator. 

Integrated Primary Care Teams will continue to develop and work in 
collaboration with Voluntary Sector organisations that are able to provide the 
majority of social support required for people with dementia and their families.

A GP checklist designed by Social Innovation Lab for Kent (SILK) in partnership 
with patients and carers has been distributed to all GP practices. The checklist 
aims to give patients support in asking the right questions when they approach 
their GP with concerns about their memory. 



                

- 8 -

7. Increased support following diagnosis

Following a diagnosis of dementia it is critical that there is access to a range of 
support and information. Over recent times CCGs and KCC have invested in a 
number of schemes: 

 Post diagnostic support – KMPT offer a range of clinical post diagnostic 
support to both the patient and carer as part of the Memory Assessment 
Service. At the end of this course people are referred to the local 
Alzheimer’s and Dementia Support Service who offer a range of services 
for the person with dementia and carers.

 Dementia Cafes and Peer Support Groups –KCC commission a range of 
organisations in the voluntary sector to provide proactive peer support for 
people with dementia. The Cafes and Peer Support Groups take place in 
a number of locations across Dartford, Gravesham and Swanley.

 Dementia Helpline – The Kent 24hr Dementia Helpline takes calls for a 
wide variety of reasons to offer advice, information and guidance for 
people living in Kent whose lives have been touched by dementia.  They 
help people with emotional support and practical advice including access 
to local services and support. 

 Patients are provided with the Alzheimer’s Society booklet ‘The 
Dementia Guide’ following diagnosis and information about local support 
services. The local action alliance is leading on the development of an 
information resource directory which should be available this year.

 Carers Assessment and a range of support services have been jointly 
commissioned by KCC and the CCGs since April 2013. This has seen an 
increased investment in the support available to carers with the provision 
of short breaks and crisis services.

8. Dementia in Acute Hospitals

All Acute Trusts in Kent have undertaken significant work in meeting the 
dementia challenge. They have employed a Lead Nurse for Dementia Care as 
well as identifying Clinical Leads. They are signed up as a dementia friendly 
hospital through the Dementia Action Alliance. 
 
Care Pathways have been formulated for patients with a known diagnosis of 
dementia as well as those with a possible diagnosis of dementia and a core 
care plan has been designed for patients with a cognitive impairment. A patient 
/ carer leaflet has also been developed for those admitted with a diagnosis of 
dementia to provide useful information and resources for these patients and 
their families. 



                

- 9 -

Guidance has also been developed for patients with behaviour that challenges 
due to dementia or delirium to ensure standardised practice  across the Trust.
 
A Dementia Strategy steering group meets quarterly, with a diverse 
membership including voluntary organisation representatives and an action plan 
including actions from the National Audit of Dementia Care in general hospitals 
is utilised to promote high standards of practice in dementia care.

The monitoring of the use of anti-psychotic drugs and their review although no 
longer reported as previously, is now a mandatory part of the electronic 
discharge note (eDN) to ensure that doctors are compliant with this aspect. 
There is also a ‘patient need’ flag on the patient centre system to identify all 
patients with a known diagnosis of dementia admitted or attending
 
The Trust has been meeting the CQUIN for screening patients with dementia 
and averages 98% of patients admitted as an emergency aged 75 and over as 
being screened and 100% for appropriate referrals. As well as undertaking this 
screening this is also incorporated within the eDN to ensure appropriate referral 
back to the GP.

The Buddy Scheme has been in place in Darent Hospital for two years and is 
seen as an example of good practice which has now been replicated in 
hospitals across the South Coast. The scheme provides trained volunteers to 
support patients with dementia in a range of social activities whilst they are in 
hospital, with the aim of reducing their confusion and improving their patient 
experience. 

In 2014 Darent Valley Hospital experienced a high number of elderly people 
with dementia that was medically fit to go home but there were not any support 
mechanisms to allow them to return home safely.  There also was little support 
for carers to help them manage the cared for person after an acute hospital 
stay.  DGS CCG commissioned a bridging service provided by the local 
Alzheimer’s and Dementia Support service who have experience in supporting 
the person with dementia and provide guidance and support for carers to help 
families manage the transition back to home following a stay in the hospital.  
The service will support people with dementia or other cognitive impairments by 
the provision of short term care support services to re-establish the patient in 
the community, including support to family carers, to allow time for decision 
making by health and social care for their future long term care needs if 
required. Over the last ten months the service has supported over 150 
discharges from the hospital and is seen as an example of best practice across 
the region.

9. Training the workforce



                

- 10 -

The National Council for Palliative care established an introductory training 
programme which follows the six step end of life care pathway and incorporates 
a specific dementia module. Training DVDs to initiate and undertake difficult 
conversations with people affected by dementia and their carers have been 
circulated to all GPs and will act as a blended learning approach for End of Life 
training.  

Dartford Gravesham and Swanley  commissioned the Alzheimer’s & Dementia 
Support Services in late 2014 to supply training by March 31 2015 to primary 
care staff based in GP practices, in order to comply with their obligations to 
Health Education England (HEE) via Health Education Kent Surrey and Sussex 
(HEKSS). The training aims to support staff to be aware of the needs of 
individuals and their families and carers to enable them to provide safe, 
dignified and compassionate care.  The training will meet the requirements of 
tier 1 foundation level dementia training. To date nearly 300 practice staff, both 
clinical and non-clinical have received training.

Health Education Kent, Surry & Sussex also invited Acute Hospitals and 
Community Trusts to participate in this programme. Subsequently training 
continues to be rolled out across all care staff in Darent Valley Hospital and 
Kent Community Healthcare Foundation Trust.

10.  Next steps 

The integration of health and social care provides an opportunity for a joint 
approach to coordinate the interventions required to build the resilience of 
people with dementia and their carers in the community. Achieving a timely 
diagnosis is critical to this programme so that crises are avoided and active 
care planning is in place.  

We will continue to build community capacity by an innovative new way of 
working through the development of a dementia community hub. The hub will 
be based on an integrated model of care with joined up provision and access of 
all Dementia Services across all sectors.  This will include robust, seamless 
pathways to other non-dementia services – recognising patients have complex 
needs that need to be met at the point of need.

The drive to increase dementia diagnosis rates has put additional burden on 
current service provision resulting in high numbers of people falling through 
gaps in services and not receiving the vital support to enable them to live well 
with dementia.  The current community service provision remains fragmented 
for older adults especially those with dementia and common mental health 
problems and the locality and Acute Hospital is experiencing high numbers of 
admissions for people with physical problems coupled with dementia that 
results in longer lengths of stay. When interventions are focussed on one 
aspect of a person’s care needs they commonly enter the health system in 



                

- 11 -

crisis and contribute to long lengths of stay in or early admission to long term 
care.

Through innovation and re-alignment of the historical pattern of service delivery 
will help services work better with people’s “natural” family supports during this 
important stage of the illness. It can contribute to people with dementia living a 
better quality of life and living as independently as possible and as part of their 
community as for as long as possible. 

11. Conclusion

This report outlines the breadth of work being undertaken across the Health, 
Social Care and Voluntary Sector in Dartford, Gravesham and Swanley to meet 
the requirements of the Prime Minsters Challenge on Dementia 2020. There is 
still more work to be done but we have an excellent foundation and continue to 
build further improvements in order to achieve the vision where people with 
dementia and their families are supported and live well with dementia in the 
community.  





DARTFORD, GRAVESHAM AND SWANLEY HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD

6 APRIL 2016
Agenda Item x

______________________________________________________________________________

1

From: Executive Group 

Subject: DGS Health and Wellbeing Board Work Plan

Classification: Unrestricted

Summary:
This report proposes items for inclusion in the Board’s forward work plan.

Recommendations

The Health and Wellbeing Board is asked to:

Consider and approve the forward work plan, subject to any amendments or 
additions that the Board wishes to make. 

1. Background and discussion

1.1 The work plan schedules update reports from the Local Children’s Partnership 
Groups (previously Children’s Operational Groups) and Health Inequalities Groups. 

1.2 The work plan also gives advance notice of other items which the Board has 
indicated that it wishes to consider, or that the Kent Board has asked it to consider.

1.3 The work plan does not preclude matters not on the work plan being submitted to any 
meeting of the Board with the agreement of the Chairman.

1.4 The Board will have an opportunity at each meeting to consider its work plan and add 
items, particularly key plans and strategies, when the timing of such is known.  

1.5 The Board had requested a report on the National Obesity Strategy, previously 
expected in February. The Government has now signalled that this is unlikely to be 
published before the EU Referendum. The item has been placed on the Work Plan 
as ‘To be scheduled’.

1.6 The Board had indicated a wish to receive the Kent Teenage Pregnancy Strategy, 
when available, and this is currently on the Work Plan ‘To be scheduled’. The 
Strategy is now available. However, in view of the heavy workload for the Board it is 
suggested that this be referred directly to the LCPGs for consideration as rhose 
Groups will be monitoring and looking for ways to reduce teenage pregnancy as part 
of their work to support the Children and Young People’s Plan.



DARTFORD, GRAVESHAM AND SWANLEY HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD

6 APRIL 2016
Agenda Item x

______________________________________________________________________________

2

2 Conclusion and Recommendations
The work plan ensures the Health and Wellbeing Board receives regular reports from 
those sub-Groups managing the key areas of the Board’s business and gives advance 
notice of other matters to be discussed. The Board is asked to:

Consider and approve the forward work plan, subject to any amendments or 
additions that the Board wishes to make. 

3 Contact details

Sheri Green, Strategic Director (External Services), Dartford Borough Council, 
email:sheri.green@dartford.gov.uk

4. Background Papers - None



1

DARTFORD GRAVESEND AND SWANLEY HEALTH AND WELLBEING 
BOARD

6 APRIL 2016
Agenda Item 

APPENDIX A
Dartford, Gravesham and Swanley HWB Forward Work Plan

Meeting Topic Suggested 
Lead

June 2016 Update on implications of new developments for 
the health sector and new shape of service 
provision

CCG & KCC
(Mike Gibson)

Report from Local Children’s Partnership Groups LCPGs
(Stuart Collins)

Fall prevention (to include info from KFRS, 
residential and nursing homes and district 
councils) and the Integrated Falls Pilot

CCG & KCC

Local Estate Strategy and One Public Estate CCG & KCC

August 
2016

Update on implications of new developments for 
the health sector and new shape of service 
provision

CCG & KCC
(Mike Gibson)

Annual review of Local Health Profiles and 
Priorities
Report from Health Inequality Groups, including 
update on ‘Mind the Gap’ 

PH & Districts

Regeneration in Swanley SDC
 (Lesley 
Bowles)

October 
2016

Update on implications of new developments for 
the health sector and new shape of service 
provision

CCG & KCC
(Mike Gibson)

December 
2016

Update on implications of new developments for 
the health sector and new shape of service 
provision

CCG & KCC
(Mike Gibson)

Report from Local Children’s Partnership Groups LCPGs
(Stuart Collins)

Provisional meeting dates for 2017-2018 

ITEMS TO BE SCHEDULED

JSNA - Assessment of the effectiveness of local services relating to the identified 
service priorities
Teenage Pregnancy Strategy 
Obesity Strategy
Report on Adolescent Mental Health
Employability & Health – GP Education




	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	4 Kent County Council Health and Wellbeing Board
	6 Actions Outstanding from Previous Meetings
	9 Dementia Friendly Community Audits: Results and Analysis
	Dementia Friendly Communities DGS HWBB
	DGS Networking eval

	10 Dementia Care Pathway and Performance Indicators
	Dartford HWBB report dementia update v1Mar16

	15 Board Work Programme
	20160406 Work Plan Appendix


